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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Melody Fowler - President

Melody Fowler was elected to the Board in 2018. She is married to Larry Fowler and they have one son that is a
graduate of AISD. Mrs. Fowler earned a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Texas at Austin and her Masters of Arts
from Texas Woman’s University. She has taught for over 30 years at both public school and at the college level. Mrs.
Fowler currently works at Arlington Baptist University as VP of Institutional Effectiveness and a Professor of English.

Mrs. Fowler has volunteered to serve on many Arlington and AISD boards. She serves on the Executive Committee for
Arlington Life Shelter, Chair of Hospitality for MPAC Arlington, Fun Run and Gala Committees for Open Arms Health
Clinic. She also belongs to The Rotary Club of Arlington, Greater Arlington Chamber of Commerce, and the Women’s
Alliance. Mrs. Fowler volunteered extensively for AISD PTA’s serving as room mom, grade rep, Site-Based Decision
Making Teams, and President of the PTA at both the junior high and high school levels. She is a recipient of the PTA Life
Membership.

Justin Chapa - Vice President

Mr. Chapa began serving on the Board in September 2017. He and his wife, Anna, are Arlington natives, graduates of
Sam Houston High School, and parents of AISD students. Mr. Chapa earned a Bachelors in Government, with honors,
from Harvard University, a Masters in Education from the Stanford Graduate School of Education, and a Juris Doctorate
from Stanford Law School. He works as an attorney at the law firm of O’Melveny & Myers, LLP and has been named a
"Rising Star" in Appellate law by Super Lawyers, a publication of Thomson Reuters. Before attending Stanford, Mr.
Chapa taught 12th Grade Government and Economics at Rivera High School in Brownsville, Texas, through Teach for
America.

Mr. Chapa has a long history of service to the Arlington and AISD community. He has served on the Board of Directors
of United Way of Tarrant County, the Arlington ISD Education Foundation, the Arlington Public Library Foundation, and
Leadership Arlington, through which he helped direct the Youth Leadership Arlington Program. Before joining the
Board, Mr. Chapa served on the AISD's Financial Futures Committee, Citizens Bond Oversight Committee, and Capital
Needs Steering Committee. Along with a friend, Mr. Chapa co-founded a scholarship program for seniors at Sam
Houston High School that has awarded almost $40,000 since its inception in 2007.

Sarah McMurrough - Secretary

Sarah McMurrough was elected to the board in May of 2021. She is married to Dr. Chris McMurrough, and they are the
proud parents of two sons. Mrs. McMurrough graduated from AISD's Bowie High School and returned to Arlington to
begin her teaching career after receiving her Bachelors in Education from Texas State University-San Marcos. Mrs.
McMurrough taught 4th grade in Arlington ISD for 12 years, where she was honored as Teacher of the Year at Lynn
Hale Elementary, AWARE Award (2nd-4th Grade) Winner, and Arlington Optimist Teacher of the Year. She is the
founding sponsor of Little Ladies, a student organization that promotes positive self-esteem and leadership
development for upper elementary-aged girls at Little Elementary.

Mrs. McMurrough now supports 3rd-5th grade ELAR teachers as a districtwide literacy coach in Mansfield ISD. She
presents professional development sessions, curates ELAR curriculum resources, and directly supports teachers and
students in classrooms throughout the district. Outside of work, Mrs. McMurrough volunteers as a Sunday school
teacher at Westminster Presbyterian Church in Arlington and a PTA member at Little Elementary. Mrs. McMurrough is
also the grant committee chairperson for the Theta Alpha Chapter of Delta Kappa Gamma, an international society of
key women educators.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)
BOARD OF TRUSTEES (continued)

Kecia Mays

Kecia Mays was elected to the Board in 2014. She has been married for 26 years and has three sons. Mrs. Mays
graduated from Texas A&M University with a BBA in Accounting and was a Supervisor employed with the Texas
Comptroller of Public Accounts - Audit Division for 31 years and 4 months, until her retirement in April 2022.

Mrs. Mays has served in a leadership capacity for several local PTAs and as a Field Service Rep for the Texas PTA. She
has received both the PTA Life Membership and PTA Extended Life Membership Awards. Mrs. Mays has served on the
Board for the Dream Weaver Foundation, Black Former Students Association of Texas A&M University, and the
Arlington Education Foundation. She currently serves on the Board for the Arlington Life Shelter, Dental Health
Arlington, Tarrant County United Way, Water from the Rock — Mt. Olive Baptist Church and The Travel & Sport Legacy
Foundation. Kecia Mays enjoys attending her sons sporting events, going to the movies and community advocacy.

Dr. Aaron Reich

Dr. Reich has served on the Board since May of 2009. He has lived in Arlington for 29 years and is married with two
children, both products of AISD. He and his wife of 28 years have two businesses in Arlington; a CPA practice (his wife,
Debra J. Freiheit, CPA, MS) and TRINU Healthcare (a professional development, education, and consulting firm for
healthcare). Dr. Reich has been an invited lecturer on a local, state, and national level. He received his Doctor of
Pharmacy degree from Creighton University, Omaha, Nebraska and came to Texas via his post graduate residency at UT
MD Anderson Cancer Center in Houston.

Dr. Reich has served on many non-profit Boards of Directors and committees, mostly related to his professional
practice and healthcare education. He is an active parent, President and co-founder of Positive Influence, a non-profit
organization dedicated to parental and father figure involvement programs for primary and secondary education. He
serves as Past-President of the Board of Directors for Theatre Arlington, is a Director for Arlington Children’s Toys, aka,
Arlington Margarita Society, amongst other Boards and Charities. He is a member of the First United Methodist Church,
Ft. Worth, and enjoys his family, community advocacy, the outdoors, and traveling.

David Wilbanks

David Wilbanks was elected to the Board in 2019 and currently works as a business consultant assisting clients with
their financial data systems. He and his wife are both Tarrant County natives. Their son and daughter are proud
graduates of AISD schools, and both are currently attending UTA. Mr. Willbanks graduated from the University of Texas
at Austin with a BS in Electrical and Computer Engineering. He also attended UTA for post-graduate work in business
and marketing before moving to Silicon Valley to start his software career. Mr. Wilbanks moved back to Texas in 1995
and chose Arlington to make his home and start his own software company. After retiring early and moving abroad for
a few years, Mr. Wilbanks and his family chose to move back to Arlington so their children could graduate from AISD
schools.

Mr. Wilbanks has served on a number of educational committees and boards in Arlington over the years; including the
Arlington ISD education Foundation, AISD’s Financial Futures Committee, Citizens Bond Oversight Committee, and the
Capital Needs Steering Committee. He also served a number of years on the board of the Butler Dads Club and is a PTA
Life Membership Award winner. Mr. Wilbanks is a proud member of the Arlington Texas Exes and is a past president of
the chapter.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)

BOARD OF TRUSTEES (continued)

John Hibbs

Mr. Hibbs was elected to the Board in May 2010. He has worked in the eye care industry for  more than 32 years and
currently is the Vice President of Commercial Sales US for Contamac Optics located in the UK. He is also a licensed
Contact Lens Examiner. Mr. Hibbs is a 1985 graduate of Texas Christian University where he received a B.A. degree.

John Hibbs and his wife Mary have been married for 37 years. They have one son and two daughters, all of whom have
attended the Arlington Independent School District. Prior to being elected to the School Board, John received both the
PTSA Lifetime Membership and PTSA Extended Life Membership awards for his volunteerism within the AISD. He
received the Girls Inc. Of Tarrant County Strong Man of the Year award. He currently serves as a director of the
Arlington Children’s Toy Charities Board and serves in a leadership role in the Children’s Ministry at Lake Arlington
Baptist Church. His passion is his family and the community he serves.

ADMINISTRATION

Dr. Marcelo Cavazos - Superintendent

Dr. Marcelo Cavazos started his teaching career as an English teacher in the Mission Consolidated ISD in 1990. In
1992, he moved to McAllen ISD where he taught English and government. He was named the secondary language arts
supervisor for Mercedes ISD in 1993 and became associate adviser for San Benito Consolidated ISD in 1995. Cavazos went
to work for the Texas Education Agency Department of School Finance and Support in 1998.

He joined the AISD in 1999 as associate superintendent for instruction and served as interim deputy superintendent
for seven months before being named deputy superintendent in February 2009. He has previously served as a
lecturer for the University of Texas at Arlington's Department of Educational Leadership and Policy Studies. Cavazos
served as interim superintendent for six months before being named superintendent December 6, 2012. He holds a
bachelor's and a master's degree from the University of Texas -Pan American and a doctorate from the University of
Texas at Austin.

In addition to his professional accomplishments, Cavazos is active in the community. He is on the TASB Risk
Management Fund Board, SafeHaven of Tarrant County Board, Workforce Solutions for Tarrant County Board, River
Legacy Foundation Board, and the Arlington ISD Education Foundation Board. He is an ex-officio member of the
Arlington Chamber of Commerce Board. Cavazos is a member of the Rotary Club of Arlington, an associate member of
the Greater Arlington Lions Club, a Lifetime Supporting Member of the Texas Lions Camp, a Melvin Jones Fellow with
Lions Club International Foundation, a member of the Knights of Columbus and active at St Matthew Catholic Church.
He received the 2009 Arlington MLK Celebration Sharing the Dream Award for Education, the 2012 YMCA Citizen of the
Year Award, the 2012 Educator Award from the Asian-American Chamber of Commerce, the 2013-2014 Elks
Distinguished Citizenship Award from the Arlington Elks Lodge No. 2114, the 2016 Seat 21 Honoree by the Texas
Rangers Baseball Foundation, the 2016 Texas Superintendent of the Year and was the Texas nominee for the 2017
AASA Superintendent of the Year Award. He has been married to Nora for 21 years; his children Theresa and Diego
attend school at Arlington High School and Gunn Junior High School
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)

ADMINISTRATION (continued)
Dr. Steven Wurtz - Chief Academic Officer

Dr. Steven Wurtz has served Arlington ISD as the Chief Academic Officer since October 2014. Prior to that within AISD,
he led as an Area Superintendent of Elementary Schools supervising 26 schools and providing executive coaching to
campus principals to facilitate implementation of research-based instructional leadership practices. Dr. Wurtz served in
various administration positions with Grand Prairie ISD and Irving ISD. His teaching experience included service as both
an elementary bilingual/ESL and Gifted and Talented teacher. Dr. Wurtz holds a bachelor’s degree in Spanish from
Brigham Young University and a master’s degree in Educational Leadership and Policy Studies from the University of
Texas at Arlington. In 2010, he earned a doctorate from Dallas Baptist University in Educational Leadership.

As Chief Academic Officer, he is responsible for developing and collaboratively actualizing the district’s learning
framework designed to empower and engage all students through relevant, innovative and rigorous learning
experiences. He facilitates the articulation of the district’s instructional and curricular direction, is responsible for the
development and supervision of campus and academic service department leaders and ensures the efficient operation
and implementation of academic systems aligned with the district’s adopted strategic plan.

Dr. Wurtz currently serves on the Texas Learning Collaborative and was formerly a member of the state board of
directors and state advocacy committee for the Texas Elementary Principals and Supervisors Association (TEPSA). He
served as the president-elect for the TEPSA 10 Board and second vice president for the TEPSA District 11 board. Dr.
Wurtz is a member of the TEPSA, ASCD, serves as a member of district lead staff for the Texas School Alliance and as a
district representative for the Arlington/Holdsworth Center Steering Committee.

Darla Moss - Chief Financial Officer

Darla Moss joined the Arlington Independent School District in March 2020, as the Chief Financial Officer. She brings
more than 36 years of financial experience to the position of Chief Financial Officer, where she leads a team of
experienced professionals in managing the district’s over $1 billion annual operating funds (inclusive of food service,
debt service, natural gas, and construction funds) and overseeing and managing fiscal operations. Prior to joining
Arlington ISD she served as the Chief Financial Officer for the Midland ISD for just under three years. Darla joined
Midland after thirteen years of service at the Liberty- Eylau Independent School District in Texarkana, Texas. She
started her work as an accountant at Liberty-Eylau before being named Controller. After seven years with the District,
she was named the Chief Financial Officer and served in the role for six years prior to joining Midland. She worked in
accounting positions in both manufacturing and retail prior to her work in the Texas public school system. She
graduated from Texas A&M University-Texarkana with a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and a
Master of Science in Accounting.

As Chief Financial Officer, she leads and manages the Finance Division of the district, which includes more than 1280
team members including finance and accounting, construction and facilities management, maintenance and facilities,
food and nutrition services, contracts and purchasing, and warehouse operations. Her responsibilities include providing
managerial direction to several essential district functions that include financial reporting, investments and cash
management, debt management, and oversight of a $966 million bond program.

Darla holds a certificate from the Texas Association of School Business Officials (TASBO) as a Registered School Business
Administrator. She is a member of TASBO, and Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA). She currently serves
on the Board of Directors of the Local Government Investment Cooperative (“LOGIC”) as secretary. She previously
served on the Board of Directors of Edwards Risk Management and as a board member of The Scholars.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)

ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Carla Martin - Assistant Superintendent of Financial Services

Carla Martin was named Assistant Superintendent of Financial Services in May 2022. Prior to joining Arlington ISD, she
was the Executive Director of Financial Services at Midland ISD for four years, Director of Financial Services for one
year, and the Federal Funds Accountant for two years. Prior to her work in the Texas public school system, she was an
internal auditor in the oil and gas services industry and the hospitality and gaming industry. She graduated from The
University of Nevada, Las Vegas, with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration in Accounting and earned a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The University of Texas Permian Basin. She is active with TASBO and
holds the RTSBA certification.

Dr. A. Tracie Brown - Chief Schools Officer

Dr. A. Tracie Brown was appointed as Chief Schools Officer in June 2021. Prior to joining Arlington ISD, Dr. Brown
served in Dallas Independent School District for 18 years. In 2010-11, Dr. Brown left DISD to help launch SMU’s Ed-
Entrepreneur Center with the Teaching Trust. As Leadership Development Director, she worked collaboratively with
SMU to construct a Master’s degree program for those who wanted to specialize in urban school leadership. Dr. Brown
also served as founding principal of C.A. Tatum Jr. Elementary School (a blue-ribbon nominated school) and S.S. Conner
Elementary School in Dallas and as Assistant Principal and Dean of Instruction at Mata Elementary and Hood Middle
School. Dr. Brown was a secondary Reading/Language Arts teacher for 7 years before joining administration. Dr. Brown
served as the Senior Area Superintendent and Assistant Superintendent before being promoted to Chief Schools Officer
in June. Dr. Brown oversees the Office of School Leadership, which also includes School Improvement and Leadership
Development. Dr. Brown received a Bachelor of Science degree in Mass Communications from Texas Woman’s
University, a Master of Science in Educational Leadership from Texas A&M-Commerce, and her doctorate from
Southern Methodist University in Educational Policy and Leadership.

Dr. Michael Hill - Assistant Superintendent of Administration

Eric

Dr. Michael Hill was named Assistant Superintendent of Administration in February of 2013. He started his teaching
career in 1996 as an Economics/Government teacher in the Union Parish School System in Louisiana. In 1997, he
moved to Fort Worth ISD where he taught and coached at Paschal High School. In 2002 he moved to Arlington ISD,
taught, and coached at Bowie High School. Later he moved into administration at Bowie High School as an assistant
principal, serving in that capacity for 3 years. Dr. Hill then became the Academic Associate Principal at Timberview High
School in the Mansfield ISD. He served in that capacity for a little less than two years before returning to Arlington ISD
as the principal at Juan Seguin High School, where he served in that capacity from January 2011 until February
2013. Michael earned his Doctorate in k-12 Leadership from Dallas Baptist University in December of 2019. He holds a
master’s degree in Educational Leadership and Policy Studies and a superintendent certification from the University of
Texas at Arlington and a bachelor’s degree from Grambling State University in Louisiana.

Upchurch - Assistant Superintendent of Technology

Eric Upchurch has spent his career in Information Technology within public sector industries spanning Healthcare to
Municipal Government. In April 2020, Eric was named Assistant Superintendent of Technology for Arlington ISD. Prior
to this appointment, Eric was a Sr. Manager within the City of Fort Worth IT Solutions Infrastructure Engineering
department responsible for strategic management of the Data Center facilities, the Network Operations Center team,
the IT Service Desk operation, and IT Change Management. Eric has a Master of Science in Information Science and is
currently a Ph.D. candidate at the University of North Texas where he served as Teaching Fellow for the College of
Information, Information Science Graduate department from 2015-2017.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)
ADMINISTRATION (continued)
Scott Kahl - Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources

Scott Kahl has served as the Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources for Arlington ISD since January of 2014.
Prior to his current role, Scott was the Human Resources Manager for Ecolab in Irving, Texas. Additional experiences
include his position as the Human Resources Manager of Parker Hannifin's Fort Worth facility and approximately 15
years at National Semiconductor in Arlington where he last served as the Human Resources Director. His previous
experiences with the school district include multiple years as a Board Member of the Arlington ISD Education
Foundation and as a community member serving on the curriculum committee. He has also served multiple previous
terms as a Board Member for the Tarrant County Workforce Board. He has a Bachelor's degree in Industrial Psychology
from St. Mary's College of California and a Master of Science degree in Industrial Psychology from San Francisco State
University.

Dr. Natalie Lopez - Assistant Superintendent of Research and Accountability

Dr. Natalie Lopez was named Assistant Superintendent of Research and Accountability in June of 2021. Dr. Lopez has
served in the Research and Accountability department for four years, first as the Coordinator of Research and
Evaluation, and then as the Director of Research and Analysis. She has eleven years of experience teaching secondary
math and holds a Principal as Instructional Leader (EC-12) certificate. Dr. Lopez holds a bachelor’s degree from The
University of Texas at Austin, a master’s degree in Educational Administration from The University of Texas at
Arlington, and a doctorate in Educational Leadership and Policy from The University of Texas at Arlington.

Dr. Christi Buell - Assistant Superintendent of School Leadership (Elementary)

Dr. Christi Buell currently serves as the Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Schools. Dr. Buell served as an Area
Superintendent in AISD from February 2014 — June 2021. Prior to that, she was a Principal at Mary Moore Elementary
in Arlington ISD. She has also served as an Executive Director of School Leadership in Dallas ISD, Dallas, Texas; a
Principal Coach, Curriculum Supervisor and Elementary Principal in Hillsborough County, Tampa, Florida; an Elementary
Principal in Millard Public Schools, Omaha, Nebraska; a K-8 Principal in Franklin Special School District, Franklin,
Tennessee; an Elementary Principal in Wylie ISD, Wylie, Texas; and an Assistant Principal and Elementary Teacher in
Garland ISD, Garland, Texas. She holds a bachelor’s degree from Texas A&M University, a master’s degree from East
Texas State University and a doctorate from Texas A&M University-Commerce. She also holds both Mid-Management
and Superintendent Certifications.

Dr. Laina McDonald - Assistant Superintendent of School Leadership (Secondary)

Dr. Laina McDonald began serving in AISD in July of 2019 as an Area Superintendent and is currently serving as the
Assistant Superintendent of School Leadership - Secondary. Dr. McDonald supervises the school improvement
department and the elementary strategic support network. Dr. McDonald served in various central administration
positions with Irving ISD and Castleberry ISO. Her experience includes serving as a High School Principal, Executive
Director for Curriculum and Instruction, and Assistant Superintendent for Leadership Development. Her teaching
experience included high school and teaching at the collegiate level. Dr. McDonald holds a bachelor's degree from
Cameron University and a master's degree in Education from Wayland Baptist University. Dr. McDonald earned a
doctorate from Texas A&M-Commerce in Educational Leadership in 2013 and holds a Texas Mid-management and
Superintendents certification.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees and Administration (continued)
ADMINISTRATION (continued)
Wm. Kelly Horn - Assistant Superintendent of Facility Services

Kelly Horn has served as the Assistant Superintendent of Facility Services since June of 2021. He began his service in
the Arlington Independent School District in November 2015, as the Executive Director of Plant Services. Prior to
joining Arlington ISD, he served in Irving ISD for seven years as the Director of Facility Services and six years as the
Construction Project Manager. Before moving into school business industry, he served as a marketing, sales, and
distribution executive in the engineered products industry. He has over 30 years of experience in product engineering
and facility services management. He graduated from Texas A&M University with a Bachelor of Science in Industrial
Distribution.

Kelly Horn has served as president-elect on the boards of the Association for Learning Environments (A4LE), North
Texas Chapter, and the North Texas Facilities Services Association (NTFSA), a TASBO affiliate. He is active with the
Texas Association of School Business Officials (TASBO) and is RTSBA (Registered Texas School Business Administrator)
certified.

Bridget Lewis - Executive Director of Financial Services

Bridget Lewis has served as the Executive Director of Financial Services since June of 2022. She began her service in the
Arlington Independent School District in February 2021 as the Director of Accounting. Prior to joining the District, she
worked seven years as the Business Manager for Everman ISD. She has an additional nine years of accounting
experience working for Region 11, Manara Academy, and Kennedale ISD. Bridget earned her BBA in Business from
Northwood University, MBA from American InterContinental University and her Registered Texas School Business
Administrator Certification from TASBO.

Samella Wilson - Director of Accounting

Samella Wilson joined the District in September 2022. She began her public school district career with Fort Worth
Independent School District. She recently was Assistant Director of Accounting Services at Dallas Independent School
District. Prior to Samella’s public-school experience, she worked in Higher Education finance. Samella earned her BS in
Business Administration with an emphasis in Accounting from Mississippi Valley State University and her MBA from
Delta State University.

Sheena Joslyn - Director of Budget and Financial Services

Sheena Joslyn joined the District in July 2019. She began her public school district career with Birdville Independent
School District. She has also worked for both Kennedale and Palacios Independent School Districts. Prior to Sheena's
public school experience, she was in the United States Air Force and worked in collections and banking. Sheena earned
her BBA in Business from Stephen F. Austin State University and her MBA from Texas Woman's University.

Tim Edwards - Chief Internal Auditor

Tim Edwards was appointed as the Chief Internal Auditor for AISD in December 2010. Previously, he served as the
Chief Internal Auditor for a university system, was the Senior Manager of Corporate Audit for a Fortune 500
corporation, and led the start-up of an Internal Audit function for the largest real estate association management
company in the country. Mr. Edwards has a BBA degree in Corporate Finance and is a Certified Internal Auditor and
Certified Fraud Examiner.
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CERTIFICATE OF BOARD

Arlington Independent School District Tarrant 220-901-11

Name of School District County Co. - Dist. No.

We, the undersigned, certify that the attached auditors’ reports of the above named school district were reviewed and “/
approved disapproved for the year ended June 30, 2022, at a meeting of the board of school trustees of such school

district on the 17 day of November 2022.
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S|g ture ofBoﬁremdent

Signature of Board Secretary
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9 INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
4\ More Than a Remarkable Education

November 17, 2022

To the Board of Trustees and Citizens of the Arlington Independent School District:

The Texas Education Code requires that all independent school districts file a complete set of financial statements
within 150 days of the close of each fiscal year with the Texas Education Agency (“TEA”). The financial statements
are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), and a firm of licensed certified public
accountants is required to audit them in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Arlington Independent School
District (“District” or “AISD”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District. Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in
this report. To the best of our knowledge and belief, we assert that this financial report is complete and reliable in
all material respects.

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Whitley Penn, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of
the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there
was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP also requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’'s MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

The independent audit of the financial statements is part of a broader, federally-mandated “Single Audit” designed
to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require
the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the
audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports may be found in the
Federal Awards section of this report.
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District Profile

The Arlington Independent School District was established as a political subdivision of the State of Texas
and incorporated in 1902. It lies halfway between Dallas and Fort Worth and serves students in four
cities - the City of Arlington, the Tarrant County portion of the City of Grand Prairie, the Town of
Pantego, and the City of Dalworthington Gardens. It is fully accredited by the TEA and is regulated by
the Texas Education Code as established by the Texas State Legislature. The District is not a component
unit of any other entity, nor does it have any component units within its overall structure.

The Arlington Independent School District is the 13th largest school district in Texas. The District
currently operates six traditional high schools, two collegiate high schools, one Career and Technical
Center, an Agricultural Science Center, Center for Visual and Performing Arts, 10 junior high schools, 47
traditional elementary schools, three fine arts/dual language academies, Pre-k at 51 locations, one
elementary leadership academy, one elementary STEM academy, one elementary world language
academy, three alternative schools and AISD Athletics Center. During the 2021-22 school year, the
District employed 7,891 full-time equivalent staff members, of which 3,924 were classroom teachers.
Enrollment for the 2021-22 year was 56,311 as reported to the State through the Public Education
Information Management System (“PEIMS”). This enrollment figure represents a decrease of
approximately 1% from the enrollment figure reported through PEIMS the previous year. Enrollment for
2022-23 is expected to be 55,603 at the fall PEIMS snapshot date, which is 1.5% less than the 2021-22
official enroliment.

The age of the District’s facilities varies greatly. In 2013, The District performed a facilities assessment
to evaluate the physical condition and educational adequacy of all facilities. The 2014 Bond Program
addressed deficiencies identified through the assessment and provided for the District’s facilities needs
through the year 2019. The 2019 bond further addresses facility needs in the district. The 2019 Bond
Program is discussed in the Major Initiatives section.

The mission of the Arlington Independent School District is to empower and engage all students to be
contributing, responsible citizens striving for their maximum potential through relevant, innovative and
rigorous learning experiences. The District provides regular, special education, career/technology,
gifted/talented, and bilingual/ESL curricula in order to meet the needs of the diverse student
population. Additionally, a broad range of electives, extra-curricular, and concentrated advanced
academic programs are also offered to enhance learning opportunities beyond core curriculum. AISD
currently offers the International Baccalaureate World School Program at four of its high schools. The
District also offers an Advanced Placement program that gives students the opportunity to graduate
with 30 or more college credits and also offers dual-credit choices so that students at each high school
can take advantage of earning on-site AISD and Tarrant County College credits. The district does not
administer or fund any charter schools.

Governance

The District is under the control and management of a board of seven trustees, each of whom is elected
by the District’s registered voters to serve a three-year term. All of the trustees are elected at-large and
serve without compensation. The elections are staggered so that not all positions are up for election
during the same year.

In general, the Board adopts policies, sets direction for curriculum, employs the Superintendent and
oversees the operations of the District and its schools. Besides general Board business, Trustees are
charged with numerous statutory regulations including appointing the tax assessor/collector, calling
trustee and other school elections and canvassing the results, organizing the Board and electing its
officers. The Board is also charged with setting the tax rate, acting on real property matters, setting
salary schedules, acting as a board of appeals in personnel and student matters, confirming
recommendations for textbook adoptions, and adopting and amending the annual budget.
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Local Economy

Arlington’s diverse economy and unique location within the D/FW Metroplex drive the city’s growth. Arlington
hosts employers from a variety of industries, including defense contractors, an automobile manufacturer, high
tech companies, higher education institutions, major finance companies, medical facilities and entertainment
companies. The area’s major transportation systems afford area businesses easy access to cities throughout the
world. Arlington is only fifteen minutes from D/FW International Airport, one of the busiest airports in the world.
Interstate Highways 20 and 30 are the major east/west arteries through the city. Access to Interstate Highway 35,
traversing the United States from Mexico to Canada, is also convenient. Rail transportation is available for both
public transportation and freight. Arlington is known as the “premier entertainment hub of the region.” Each year
approximately 6.8 million people visit Arlington. The five main entertainment attractions are: Six Flags Over Texas
amusement park; Texas Ranger’s Globe Life Ballpark, Six Flags, Hurricane Harbor water park, Texas Live!, and
AT&T Stadium, home of the Dallas Cowboys. AT&T Stadium has hosted numerous NFL and college games, major
concerts, the 2019 PBR Global Cup, the Cotton Bowl, and Super Bowl XLV. AT&T stadium will host Kenny Chesney
for his 2020 Chillaxification tour.

Relevant Financial Policies

Factors affecting financial control

Management of the District has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the District’s assets from loss, misuse or theft, and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the District’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls
should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed
to provide reasonable assurance rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement.

Budgetary Control

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the District’s financial planning and control. Texas State law
requires the Board president to call a Board meeting for the purpose of discussing and adopting the budget and
the tax rate. A notice of this meeting must be published at least 10 days but not more than 30 days before the
public meeting. The budget must be adopted prior to June 30.

The District maintains budgetary controls throughout all of its financial systems. The objective of budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the official budget adopted by the Board. The
Board adopts an official budget for the General Fund, Natural Gas Special Revenue Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Capital Projects Fund and Food Service Fund. In accordance with procedures prescribed by the State Board of
Education, budget amendments that affect the total amount in a fund or functional spending category must be
approved by the Board prior to expenditure of funds. The functional level is specified by Board policy as the legal
level of budgetary control. Budgetary control is maintained at the organizational level by the encumbrance of
estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. Outstanding encumbrances at the
end of the fiscal year are an assignment of fund balance and are treated as expenditures in the subsequent year
upon receipt of goods and services.
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Major Initiatives

Academic Achievement

Arlington ISD is committed to providing all students with a rigorous, innovative and highly relevant learning
experience that captures learners’ creativity and provides them with a pathway to develop skills aligned to their
post-secondary life goals. This effort includes the development and effective implementation of a guaranteed and
viable curriculum and meaningful programming that foster the implementation of researched-based instructional
practices in the classroom.

The budgetary impact for 2022-2023 includes:

. 2" cohort of students at the Gunn Junior High Fine Arts/Dual Language Academy.

e Additional cohorts at three new elementary academy programs — Crow Leadership, Pearcy STEM and
Wimbish World Language Academy.

e Coaching and professional development for Best Practices and Active Learning Cycle training;

e 2" cohort at Bowie High School P-Tech program

e New cohort at Lamar High School P-Tech program

e  Planning years for upcoming P-Tech programs at Sam Houston and Seguin High Schools

e  Expansion of two-way Dual Language programming

e Expansion of Dual Credit program options

e  Curricular and programmatic enhancements

e Expansion of services and resources to support learners’ social and emotional health

College Readiness

A key component of the district’'s Powered by Possibilities strategic plan is for students to be prepared to excel at
their school of choice by providing leading-edge learning experiences. That belief guides the college readiness
portion of the academic services priorities.

The budgetary impact for 2022-2023 includes:

e 4™ cohort of students at Arlington College and Career High School, an early college high school program, in
partnership with Tarrant Community College.
e Opening of the P-TECH program at Lamar High School

Workforce Readiness

For workforce readiness, the Academic Services division will focus efforts around initiatives to help students be
prepared to enter the workforce after graduation by increasing workforce certification opportunities aligned with
industry needs. The goal is to provide a pathway for students to acquire gainful employment through relevant
curricular and intern-based learning experiences.
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The budgetary impact for 2022-2023 includes:

e 4t cohort of students at Arlington College and Career High School, an early college high school program, in
partnership with Tarrant Community College.

e  Opening of P-TECH at Lamar High School

e  Planning years for P-TECH for Sam Houston and Seguin High Schools

e  Expansion of CTE programs and workforce partnerships

Leadership, Citizenship and Responsibility

The Arlington ISD proactively in developing programs that teach leadership, citizenship and how to act responsibly.
The Year 5 focus includes:

e Expand PK-12 service-learning opportunities.

e Expand community partnership program with faith-based, civic, business, nonprofit, government and
higher education groups.

e Enhance volunteer opportunities districtwide.

The budgetary impact for 2021-2022 includes leadership development within AISD.

Long-term Financial Planning

The Board recognizes the significance of adopting balanced budgets, sustaining a strong fund balance, and long-
range financial planning. The Board has adopted a policy that sets forth parameters for annual budget
development and targets the unassigned General Operating fund balance at two-months of operating
expenditures. The parameters include prioritizing resources into programs that promote student achievement
growth, maintaining competitive compensation to attract and retain a highly qualified workforce, board approval
of staffing ratios, balancing the budget with limited use of surplus fund balance for one-time expenditures, and
prioritizing any necessary reductions in areas that have the least impact on instruction. General operating needs
and capital needs are interdependent and must be considered together in order to effectively plan for and address
the District’s long-range financial needs.

Community involvement in long-range financial planning is a District priority. A Financial Futures Committee
comprised of staff and citizens meet periodically to study the District’s strategic plan, budget cost drivers,
enrollment and property value trends, and the state school finance system to understand how those issues affect
AISD’s budget, tax rates, instructional programming and long-range financial planning. The scope and purpose of
the committee is to provide the Board with findings and recommendations from community stakeholders relating
to budgets and long-range financial planning to support the District’s Strategic Plan.

The objectives of our long-range planning include investing in capital priorities, balancing the budget and
enhancing instructional opportunities for all students. The District is committed to involving its stakeholders in
financial planning efforts to ensure that the work is transparent, aligns with our strategic plan and meets
community priorities.

We have a responsibility to the students of AISD to provide an education that allows them to graduate

exceptionally prepared for college, career and citizenship. We are here to meet that responsibility and to serve our
students and our staff.
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Awards and Acknowledgements

Innovative programs, teachers and volunteers are all key to the success of AISD students. Under the new
accountability system, TEA rates each district and campus as A —F. In 2020, AISD received a A rating with an overall
score of 96 out of 100.

The Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the Arlington Independent School District for its comprehensive annual financial report for
the year ended June 30, 2021. This was the 43rd consecutive year that the Arlington Independent School District
has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District published a
comprehensive annual financial report that was easy to read and was efficiently organized. This report satisfied
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is
valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to
meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

Additionally, the Association of School Business Officials International (“ASBO”) awarded a Certificate of Excellence
in Financial Reporting by School Systems to the Arlington Independent School District for the 33st consecutive
year. The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for School Systems Program is a voluntary program
sponsored by ASBO to foster excellence in the preparation and issuance of school system financial reports. A
Certificate of Excellence is awarded to those school systems that have voluntarily submitted their comprehensive
annual financial report (“CAFR”) for review by an ASBO Panel of Review. Upon completion of a vigorous technical
review, the panel of review members concluded that the Arlington Independent School District’s financial report
met the criteria for excellence in financial reporting. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the
requirements of the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting by School Systems program, and we are
submitting it to ASBO to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the finance department. We would like to express our appreciation to all members of
the department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We would also like to thank the
members of the Board of Trustees for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial
operations of the District in a responsible and progressive manner.

Sincerely,
Darla Moss Dr. Marcelo Cavaz
Chief Financial Officer Superintendent
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Arlington Independent School District
Arlington, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Arlington Independent School District (the “District”), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, the
respective budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial
doubt shortly thereafter.

WE ARE AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF
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To the Board of Trustees
Arlington Independent School District

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and
analysis, pension information, and other-post employment benefit information, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

4 Arlington ISD 2022 ACFR



To the Board of Trustees
Arlington Independent School District

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, required Texas
Education Agency (TEA) schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, required TEA schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
introductory section, statistical section, and Schedule L-1 but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not
express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the
other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 17, 2022 on our
consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(,U})E-H..-:j 72# L

Fort Worth, Texas
November 17, 2022
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In this section of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, the management of Arlington Independent School District
(“the District”) offer readers this narrative discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the District’s
financial statements, which follow this analysis.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e At the close of the year ended June 30, 2022, the District’s assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows, resulting in a net position of $159 million.

e The government-wide statements reported total revenues of $792 million, which exceeded total expenditures of
$735 million and resulted in an increase of net position by $56 million.

e The District’s governmental funds financial statements reported combined ending fund balances of $877 million,
which is $143 million greater than the previous year. $165 million, or 19%, is available for spending at the
District’s discretion (unassigned balance).

e The General Fund had $609 million in revenue, which primarily consisted of local property taxes and state aid, and $2
million in extraordinary items of insurance proceeds. Expenditures of $559 million resulted in an increase in fund
balance by $52 million from the previous year. Unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $164 million or
29% of total general fund expenditures.

e In November 2019, Arlington voters approved a $966 million bond package. Proceeds from the bond issue will be
used to build new facilities, upgrade and renovate existing facilities, address safety and security districtwide, upgrade
technology infrastructure and equipment, provide fine arts equipment, and purchase transportation and white fleet
service vehicles. This bond program is planned as a five-year program. The District issued $176 million of Unlimited
Tax School Building and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022, in February 2022. $166.7 million of Series 2022 were for the
third issuance of the Bond 2019 program. In addition, $9.6 million of Series 2022 were for the purpose of refunding a
portion of outstanding debt of the Series 2012 and Series 2013 bonds.

e During the 2021-2022 school year, many districts in the state experienced losses in average daily attendance (ADA)
due to low rates of attendance caused by the 2020 coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19). Because ADA is a major
component of state aid, to mitigate the potential reduction in state funding, the Texas Education Agency (TEA)
provided a mechanism to stabilize percentage attendance rates comparable to a more typical school year. This one-
time adjustment focused on a target percentage attendance rate (TPAR) based on the district’s first four six-week
attendance period of the 2019-2020 school year. The TPAR adjustment resulted in approximately $13 million in state
aid the District would not have otherwise received.

e The Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Il Fund (ESSER II), authorized under the Coronavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations (CRRSA) Act of 2020, provided supplemental appropriations to
prevent, prepare for, and respond to COVID-19. The District was allocated S60 million of ESSER Il funds, for the
period March 13, 2020 through September 30, 2023. The District received $23 million for expenses incurred during
the 2020-2021 school year, recognized as 2021-2022 revenue in the General Fund. In addition, $11 million was spent
at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

e The American Rescue Plan Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER lIl), authorized under the
American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021, provided funding in safely reopening and sustaining operations of schools
while meeting the academic, social, emotional, and mental health needs of students resulting from COVID-19. The
District was allocated $134 million of ESSER Il funds, available through September 30, 2024, with $26 million spent at
the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements, notes to those statements, and other supplementary

information.

Basic Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include two types of statements that present different views of the District. Major features
of the District’s government-wide and fund financial statements, including the portion of the District government they cover
and the types of information they contain, are summarized below:

Fund Financials

Type of
Statement Government-Wide Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire District’s The activities of the District |Activities the District Instances in which the
government that are not propriety or operates similar to District is the trustee
(except fiduciary funds) | fiduciary private businesses or custodian for
someone else’s
resources
Required e Statementofnet | ¢ Balance sheet e Statement of net e Statement of
Financial position e Statement of revenues, position Fiduciary Net
Statements e Statement of expenditures, and e Statement of Position
activities changes in fund revenues, e Statement of
balances expenditures, and Changes in
changes in fund Fiduciary Net
net position Position
e Statement of cash
flows

Accounting Basis

Accrual accounting and

Modified accrual accounting

Accrual accounting and

Accrual accounting and

and Measurement |economic resources and current financial economic resources economic resources

Focus focus resources focus focus focus

Type of All assets and liabilities,| Only assets expected to be |All assets and liabilities, |All assets and

Asset/Liability both financial and used up and liabilities that  |poth financial and liabilities, both

Information capital, short-term and |come due during the year or |capital, short-term and (financial and capital,
long-term soon thereafter; no capital |long-term short-term and long-

assets included term

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which cash is  |All revenue and Agency funds do not

Inflow/Outflo expenses during the received during or soon expenses during the report revenue and

w Information year, regardless of after year-end, expenditures |year, regardless of when| expenditures.

when cash
is received or paid.

when goods or services have
been received and payment
is due during the year or
soon thereafter.

cash is received or paid.

Fiduciary funds
present all revenues
and expense during the|
year regardless of
when cash is received
or paid.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

e  Government-wide financial statements provide information about the activities of the District as a whole and present
both a long-term and short-term view of the District’s finances.

(0]

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A-1) and the
Statement of Activities (Exhibit B-1). These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the District’s finances. The government-wide statements apply the accrual basis of accounting, which is
similar to the accounting basis used by most private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes
all of the District’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as
net position. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The two government-wide financial statements report the District’s net position and changes in them. Net
position (the difference between assets, deferred inflows/outflows and liabilities) provides one measure of the
District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position
are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall health of
the District, however, additional factors should be considered, such as changes in the District’s property tax
base, state funding, or its average daily attendance and the condition of the District’s facilities

e  Fund financial statements report the District’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by
providing information about the District’s most significant funds, as opposed to the District as a whole. Laws and bond
covenants require the District to establish some funds, such as grants received under the Every Student Succeeds Act
from the U.S. Department of Education. The District’s administration establishes other funds to help it control and
manage money for specific purposes. The three kinds of funds used by the District - governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary - use different accounting approaches:

o

Governmental funds - Most of the District’s basic services are reported in governmental funds. These funds
use modified accrual accounting (an accounting method that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) and report balances that are available for
future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s
general operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps users determine
the availability of financial resources to finance the District’s programs. We describe the differences between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds in reconciliation schedules following each of the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds - Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. Fund financial statements tell how goods or services of the District were sold
to external customers and how funds were accumulated and costs were allocated internally among various
functions. There are two proprietary fund types: (1) Enterprise funds and (2) Internal service funds. The District
operates one enterprise fund that accounts for its Natatorium. Internal service funds are an accounting device
used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the various functions. The District has two internal
service funds, the Print Shop and the Workers’ Compensation Funds.

Fiduciary funds - provides financial information about activities for which the District acts solely as a trustee, or
fiduciary, or agent, for money raised by student activities. These resources can be used only for the student
groups that raised the funds; therefore, they are recorded in custodial funds. We exclude these resources from
the District’s other financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations.
The District is only responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a complete understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Supplementary Information

This annual report contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements and the notes to
the financial statements. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section) is required supplementary information
under governmental accounting standards. The report sections labeled “Required TEA Schedules” and “Federal Awards
Section” contain data used by monitoring or regulatory agencies for assurance that the District is using supplied funds in
compliance with the terms of grants. The unaudited “Statistical Section,” includes selected financial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net Position. The District’s capital assets, which consist of the District’s land, building, building improvements, furniture,
and equipment, represent about 52 percent of total assets. The remaining assets consist mainly of cash, investments, and
state revenue receivable. The District’s long-term liabilities, which consist of the District’s bonds payable, net pension liability,
and net OPEB liability, represent about 93 percent of total liabilities. The remaining liabilities include payables on accounts and
salaries and benefits.

The District’s net position at June 30, 2022, totaled $159 million. A large portion of net position, $231 million, reflects the
District’s investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, furniture, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to students; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources
(generally property taxes), since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the District’s net position of $37 million represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is a deficit $108 million.

NET POSITION
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities (in '000s)

2022 2021 Increase/(Decrease)
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Current and other assets S 996,266 48% S 840,571 44% S 155,695 19%
Capital assets 1,086,118 52% 1,065,936 56% 20,182 2%
Total Assets 2,082,383 100% 1,906,507 100% 175,876 9%
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 100,919 100% 103,102 100% (2,183) 100%
Current liabilities 127,427 7% 111,993 7% 15,434 33%
Long term liabilities 1,640,582 93% 1,608,755 93% 31,827 67%
Total Liabilities 1,768,009 100% 1,720,748 100% 47,261 3%
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 255,813 100% 185,285 100% 70,528 100%
Net Position

Net Investment in capital assets 231,351 248,973 (17,622)
Restricted 37,247 51,069 (13,822)
Unrestricted (109,117) (196,466) 87,349

Total Net Position $ 159,480 $ 103,576 $ 55,904
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Changes in Net Position. Total net position of the District increased by $61 million over last year. The District added capital
assets of $20 million, and the District’s long-term liabilities increased by $27 million. This increase is attributed primarily to
the increase in the liabilities due in more than one year for the 2022 bond issuance and refunding of $167 million, offset by
retirement of debt.

Governmental Activities

Funding for government-wide activities is by the specific program revenue or through general revenues such as property
taxes and investment earning. Revenues from governmental activities totaled $792 million for fiscal year 2022. The costs
of all governmental programs and services were $735 million.

The net effect of these items resulted in an increase in net position of $61 million. Key elements of this change are
illustrated in the following table:
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities

2022 2021 Increase/(Decrease)
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services S 10,568 1% S 3,495 0% S 7,073 202%
Operating grants 155,230 20% 102,323 14% 52,907 52%
General Revenues: 0% 0%
Property taxes 451,999 57% 442,987 60% 9,012 2%
State Aid - Formula Grants 168,771 21% 190,358 26% (21,587) -11%
Grants and contributions not restricted - 0% 1,438 0% (1,438) -100%
Investment earnings 1,576 0% 851 0% 725 85%
Other 1,114 0% 2,053 0% (939) -46%
Extraordinary items 2,444 0% 550 0% 1,894 344%
Total Revenues 791,702 100% 744,055 100% 47,647 6%
Expenses
Instruction, curriculum and media services 417,071 57% 420,461 59% (3,390) -1%
Instructional and school leadership 51,928 7% 49,747 7% 2,181 4%
Student support services 65,829 9% 62,839 9% 2,990 5%
Food services 26,649 4% 25,477 4% 1,172 5%
Cocurricular activities 16,271 2% 11,746 2% 4,525 39%
General administration 14,721 2% 12,775 2% 1,946 15%
processing 95,064 13% 81,175 11% 13,889 17%
Community services 2,261 0% 2,751 0% (490) -18%
Debt service 40,831 6% 38,678 5% 2,153 6%
Facilities planning 3,002 0% 6,313 1% (3,311) -52%
Intergovernmental charges 2,171 0% 2,327 0% (156) -7%
Total Expenses 735,798 100% 714,289 100% 21,509 3%
Increase ( Decrease) in Net Position 55,904 29,766 26,138
Net Position - Beginning 103,576 73,810 29,766
Net Position - Ending $159,480 $103,576 $55,904
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenues. The District’s total revenues for governmental activities were $792 million, representing and increase of $48
million from the previous year. A majority of this increase is due to the federal supplement of ESSER Il and ESSER IIl funds
with some increase in local property tax revenue. As illustrated in Figure I, 57% of the District’s revenue comes from local
property taxes, 21% from state aid, and 20% from operating grants and contributions.

Governmental Revenues by Type
Figure 1
0% 1% M Charges for services
20%

W Operating/Capital grants
and contributions

M Property taxes

M State and other grants

H Other revenue and special
item
57%

Expenses. The District’s total expenses were $731 million, representing an increase of $17 million from the previous year.
The majority of this increase is attributable to salary increases for the 2020-2021 fiscal year and additional costs incurred
for safe reopening and response to COVID-19. As illustrated in Figure I, the District’s primary functional expenses are
Instruction (53%), Plant Maintenance & Operations (9%), School Leadership (5%), Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation
(5%), and Interest on Long-Term Debt (5%).

Governmental Expenses by Function M Instruction, curriculum and media
Figure 2 services

1% M Instructional and school leadership
5% |/—0%

M Student support services

H Food services
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Business-Type Activities

The District began operating the Natatorium in fiscal year 2021. For fiscal year 2022, revenues totaled $161,508 for user
charges. The expenses totaled $110,139 resulting an ending net position of $181,936

NET POSITION
Business-Type Activities
2022 2021 Increase (Decrease)
Amount Amount Amount
Total Assets $ 189,690 $ 136,929 $ 52,761
Total Liabilities 7,755 6,364 1,391
Unrestricted Net Position $ 181,935 $ 130,565 $ 54,152

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Business-Type Activities

2022 2021 Increase (Decrease)
Amount Amount Amount
Revenue 161,509 143,108 18,401
Expenses 110,139 12,543 97,596
Increase in Net Position 51,370 130,565 115,997
Net position - beginning 130,565 -
Net position - ending $ 181,935 $ 130,565

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

At the end of the fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported combined fund balance of $877 million, an increase
of $143 million in comparison with the prior year. $165 million, or 19%, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending at the District’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is not available for new spending because
it is classified as non-spendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending.
Non-spendable funds have already been used to purchase inventories and prepaid items ($3 million). Restricted funds are
restricted for federal, state and local grants ($12 million), for capital acquisition (5494 million), and to pay debt service (S53
million). The District’s committed fund balance consists of the Natural Gas Fund ($15 million) and campus activity funds ($2
million). In addition, on March 10, 2022, the Board committed $11 million for the expansion of the full day prekindergarten
program to all four year old students for fiscal years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025. The District’s assigned fund balance
includes ensuring sixty days of cash flow ($60 million), implementation of the full day prekindergarten program for fiscal
year 2022-2023 ($5 million), and supplemental capital project funds ($53 million). Assignments reflect the District’s self-
imposed limitation on the use of otherwise available expendable financial resources in governmental funds.

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $164 million, while the total fund balance was $297 million, which is an increase of
$52 million from previous year. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, unassigned fund balance is 29% of total fund
expenditures.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

The fund balance of the District’s general fund increased by $52 million during the fiscal year. Key factors in this growth are
as follows:

e Revenues totaled $608 million which is a 5% increase from the previous year. Property values increased by 4%
from previous year, resulting in an increase in property tax revenues by $5 million. State aid decreased by $21
million due to decreased ADA.

e Expenses totaled $559 million which is a 2% increase from the previous year. To recruit and retain the best
possible employees, the Board of Trustees approved a 4% increase of midpoint salary for all employees.

e The District received $23 million in ESSER Il funds for expenses incurred during the 2020-2021 school year. This
reimbursement was recognized as revenue in the General Fund for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. In addition,
expenses totaling $10 million were moved to ESSER I, reducing overall General Fund expenses. Finally, indirect
cost revenue from ESSER |, ESSER 1I, and ESSER Il contributed $5 million not available in the prior year.

Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $53 million at year-end, all of which is restricted to
service the District’s outstanding debt. Fund balance decreased by $6 million from previous year mainly due to additional
redemptions of Series 2012 and Series 2013 from fund balance.

Capital Projects Fund. The Capital Projects Fund ended the current fiscal year with a fund balance of $498 million. $3.8
million of this fund balance is assigned as it is related to non-bond funded capital projects. The remaining fund balance is
restricted to liquidate contracts and to pay for capital acquisitions primarily for ongoing projects from the 2014 bond
program and for new projects under the 2019 bond program. The Capital Projects fund balance increased by $90 million
during the year, the net result of bond sales and project expenditures. Although capital expenditures reduce available fund
balances, they create new assets for the District as reported in the Statement of Net Position and as discussed in Note IV. E.
to the financial statements.

Natural Gas Special Revenue Fund. The Natural Gas Fund has a total fund balance of $14.7 million at year-end, all of which
is committed for special projects. Fund balance increased by a net of $1.4 million over the previous year primarily due to
interest earnings and royalties.

Budgetary Highlights

The District is required to adopt an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Child
Nutrition Program. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with
statutory requirements. In addition, the District adopts an annual budget for the Capital Projects Fund and the Natural Gas
Fund.

General Fund. The most significant fund for the District is the General Fund, funded primarily through local property tax
revenue. The District’s budget amendments presented to the Board of Trustees throughout the year are summarized as
follows:

e Variances of original expenditure budget compared to amended budget.
The amended expenditure budget decreased $4 million from the original budget. The original budget was
prepared prior to the official notification from TEA regarding the allocation of ESSER Il funds. The District moved
General Fund expenses totaling $10 million to ESSER Il for the fiscal year. In addition, an amendment to re-
appropriate $1 million in campus budget allocations not spent at the end of the preceding year (referred to as
“carryover funds”) was conducted in the first semester of the school year. The final amendment was based on the
knowledge of the fiscal year.

e Variances of amended budget to actual expenditures.

Expenditures were $21 million less than final budgeted amounts. This was primarily due to the impact of vacancies
throughout the district for the fiscal year.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Variances of amended revenue budget compared to actual revenue.

Revenues exceeded the final budget by $21 million. State revenue exceeded the revised budget by $10 million due
to the District budgeting conservatively regarding the announced TPAR adjustment. Federal program revenues
exceeded the revised budget by $8 million due to the finalization of ESSER Il prior period expenses.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of 2022, the District had $1.086 billion invested (net of accumulated depreciation) in a broad range of capital
assets, including facilities and equipment for instruction, transportation, athletics, administration, maintenance, and food

service. This amount represents a $20 million, or 2%, increase over prior year.

CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of Depreciation, in thousands)

Governmental Activities Increase
2022 % 2021 % (Decrease) %
Land S 87,550 8% S 82,354 8% S 5,196 6%
Buildings and improvements 831,308 77% 876,337 82% (45,029) -5%
Furniture and equipment 26,229 2% 30,598 3% (4,369) -14%
Construction in progress 140,897 0% 76,648 7% 64,249 84%
Right-to-use assets under lease 134 13% - 0% 134 100%
Total S 1,086,118 100% S 1,065937 100% S 20,181 2%

During the 2020-21 year approximately $4 million was spent on projects related to the 2014 bond program and $99 million
was spent on projects related to the 2019 bond program.

The following information details the expenses for 2014 Bond projects during the 2021-2022 fiscal year:

Center for Visual and Performing Arts (253) $339,303
District-wide Athletic Center (254) $18,273
Service Center Roof Replacement (255) $49,000

The following information details the expenses for 2019 Bond projects during the 2021-2022 fiscal year:

Gunn Fine Arts / Dual Language Academy

Crow Elementary School Addition and Renovation

Food & Nutrition Service Center Addition and Renovation
Enterprise Centre Addition and Renovation

New Webb Elementary School Construction

New Thornton Elementary School Construction

New Berry Elementary School Construction

Shackelford JHS and Jones Fine Arts & Dual Language Academy
Martin High School Addition and Renovation

Glaspie Field Addition and Renovation

Playgrounds — Phase |

Playgrounds — Phase Il

Arlington High School Fine Arts & Dual Language Academy
Sam Houston High School Addition and Renovation

Bailey Junior High School Addition and Renovation

15

$17,186,208
$2,627,297
$41,023
$1,168,241
$17,078,590
$13,982,521
$10,518,298
$3,067,529
$344,161
$59,984
$721,974
$545,793
$1,253,497
$602,951
$693,104
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Duff Elementary School $365,151
South Davis Elementary School $102,243
Adams Elementary School $21,961
Hale Elementary School $97,151
Atherton Elementary School $75,042
Foster Elementary School $133,899
Johns Elementary School $182,736
New Carter Junior High School Construction $596,749
Short Elementary School $316,305
Land Purchase $92,450
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment $2,260,325
Technology $18,032,505
Fine Arts $254,002
Transportation (Buses / White Fleet) $1,385,554

Outstanding Debt

The District maintained its high underlying credit ratings of AA from Standard and Poor’s Corporation and Aal from
Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. The District’s bonds qualify for the AAA State’s Permanent School Fund Guarantee. These
ratings result in lower debt issuance costs for the District.

At fiscal year end, the District had total debt outstanding of $1.3 billion versus $1.2 billion in prior year. Most of the
District’s debt is for bonded debt, all of which is considered to be direct tax supported debt. The increase is the net result
of the issuance of $176 million of Unlimited Tax School Building and Refunding Bonds, Series 2022, in February 2022.
$166.7 million of Series 2022 were for the third issuance of the Bond 2019 program. In addition, $9.6 million of Series 2022
were for the purpose of refunding a portion of outstanding debt of the Series 2012 and Series 2013 bonds. As of June 30,
2022, the District has $263,538,700 of the authorized $966 million bond funds that remain unissued.

More detailed information about the District’s outstanding debt is presented in Note IV.F. to the financial statements.
OUTSTANDING DEBT

(in thousands)
Governmental Activities

Increase
2022 2021 (Decrerase)
Bonds Payable S 1,185,950 S 1,085,150 S 100,800
Bond Premiums 169,325 146,301 23,024
Accreted interest 4,863 4,791 72
Lease liability 1,464 2,006 (542)
Accrued Service Benefits 144 265 (121)
Notes Payable 29 36 (7)
Total S 1,361,775 S 1,238,549 S 123,226
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Economic Factors And Next Year’s Budget And Rates

The District’s 2022-2023 budget was developed under the 2022-2027 Powered by Possibilities Strategic Plan. The Strategic
Plan focuses on four performance objective categories:

e Personalized Learning Experiences

e Increase Focus and Student Achievement

e Social and Emotional Wellbeing, and

e Equitable Access.
These four performance objective categories frame the district’s academic programming work for the 2022-2023 school
year and beyond, intentionally promote budget development around high impact areas of improvement and inform
strategic planning as the District strives to become a premiere school district and a leader in education.

The District’s property values grew by 5% and the Maintenance & Operations (M&O) tax rate decreased from $1.0601 to
$1.0080 per $100 valuation. The Interest and Sinking (I&S) tax rate remained at $0.3007 per $100 valuation. Based on
enrollment and attendance trends and the addition of the launch of the Universal Pre-K initiative and a new P-TECH
program, the District is budgeting for enrollment of 55,603 students at 91.5% attendance.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview
of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this

report or need additional financial information, please contact the Finance Department at Arlington Independent School
District, 690 East Lamar Blvd, Arlington, Texas 76011.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2022
Data
Control
Codes
Assets
1110 Cash and cash equivalents
1120 Current investments
1225 Property taxes receivables, net
1240 Due from other governments
1250 Accrued interest
1260 Internal balances
1290 Other receivables, net
1300 Inventories
1410 Prepaid items
1490 Other current assets
Capital assets not subject to depreciation:
1510 Land
1580 Construction in progress
Capital assets net of depreciation:
1520 Buildings and improvements, net
1530 Furniture and equipment, net
1550 Right-to-use assets under lease
1910 Long-term investments
1000 Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred outflows - pension
Deferred outflows - other post-employment benefits ( OPEB)
1700 Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
2110 Accounts payable
2140 Interest payable
2150 Payroll deductions and withholdings
2160 Accrued wages payable
2180 Due to other governments
2190 Due to others
2200 Accrued expenses
2300 Unearned revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities:
2501 Due within one year
2502 Due in more than one year
2540 Net pension liability
2545 Net other post-employment benefits ( OPEB) liability
2000 Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred gain on refunding
Deferred inflows - pensions
Deferred inflows - other post-employment benefits ( OPEB)
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
3200 Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
3820 Federal and state programs
3840 Food service
3850 Debt service
3900 Unrestricted
3000 Total Net Position

See notes to the financial statements.

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
S 843,438,136 S 189,970 S 843,628,106
29,860,816 - 29,860,816
10,275,874 - 10,275,874
77,474,967 - 77,474,967
161,326 - 161,326
280 (280) -
5,013,223 - 5,013,223
4,643,122 - 4,643,122
628,937 - 628,937
55,868 - 55,868
87,549,874 - 87,549,874
140,896,763 - 140,896,763
831,307,868 - 831,307,868
26,228,995 - 26,228,995
134,077 134,077
24,713,281 - 24,713,281
2,082,383,407 189,690 2,082,573,097
9,931,236 - 9,931,236
55,317,082 - 55,317,082
35,671,145 - 35,671,145
100,919,463 - 100,919,463
24,232,414 7,755 24,240,169
18,017,875 - 18,017,875
9,566,678 - 9,566,678
56,464,052 - 56,464,052
9,343,619 - 9,343,619
2,128,878 - 2,128,878
6,917,840 - 6,917,840
755,921 - 755,921
57,432,094 - 57,432,094
1,304,342,659 - 1,304,342,659
94,001,973 - 94,001,973
184,805,089 - 184,805,089
1,768,009,092 7,755 1,768,016,847
2,704,235 - 2,704,235
111,782,099 - 111,782,099
141,327,011 - 141,327,011
255,813,345 - 255,813,345
231,350,616 - 231,350,616
366,666 - 366,666
112,465 - 112,465
36,767,894 - 36,767,894
(109,117,208) 181,935 (108,935,273)
S 159,480,433 S 181,935 $ 159,662,368
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenue

Exhibit B-1
Page 1 of 2

Data Operating
Control Charges for Grants and
Codes Functions/ Programs Expenses Services Contributions
Governmental Activities:
11 Instruction $ 389,963,936 - $ 63,310,497
12 Instructional resources and media services 7,883,680 - 1,012,387
13 Curriculum and staff development 19,223,240 - 13,248,645
21 Instructional leadership 17,464,181 - 5,064,444
23 School leadership 34,463,426 - 3,656,710
31 Guidance, counseling, and evaluation services 34,018,949 - 5,457,561
32 Social work services 3,785,746 - 1,062,899
33 Health services 7,299,056 - 18,662,140
34 Student transportation 20,725,520 636,427 1,384,906
35 Food service 26,649,275 830,591 32,992,958
36 Extracurricular activities 16,270,896 4,723,008 471,606
41 General administration 14,720,804 1,340,570 1,009,948
51 Plant, maintenance and operations 64,686,927 433,307 2,711,449
52 Security and monitoring services 10,504,356 - 999,721
53 Data processing services 19,872,521 2,603,685 857,716
61 Community services 2,260,693 - 2,021,621
72 Interest on long-term debt 38,126,285 - 1,305,276
73 Debt issuance costs and fees 2,704,362 - -
81 Facilities planning 3,002,397 - -
95 Payments to Juvenile Justice Alternative
Education Programs 65,274 - -
99 Intergovernmental charges 2,106,007 - -
TG Total Governmental Activities 735,797,531 10,567,588 155,230,484
Business-Type Activities:
01 Natatorium 110,139 161,509 -
TB Total Business-Type Activities 110,139 161,509 -
TP Total Primary Government S 735,907,670 10,729,097 S 155,230,484
See notes to the financial statements. 22
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net ( Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net

Position
Primary Government
Data
Control Governmental Business-type
Codes  Functions/ Programs Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
11 Instruction $ (326,653,439) $ - $(326,653,439)
12 Instructional resources and media services (6,871,293) - (6,871,293)
13 Curriculum and staff development (5,974,595) - (5,974,595)
21 Instructional leadership (12,399,737) - (12,399,737)
23 School leadership (30,806,716) - (30,806,716)
31 Guidance, counseling, and evaluation services (28,561,388) - (28,561,388)
32 Social work services (2,722,847) - (2,722,847)
33 Health services 11,363,084 - 11,363,084
34 Student transportation (18,704,187) - (18,704,187)
35 Food service 7,174,274 - 7,174,274
36 Extracurricular activities (11,076,282) - (11,076,282)
41 General administration (12,370,286) - (12,370,286)
51 Plant, maintenance and operations (61,542,171) - (61,542,171)
52 Security and monitoring services (9,504,635) - (9,504,635)
53 Data processing services (16,411,120) - (16,411,120)
61 Community services (239,072) - (239,072)
72 Interest on long-term debt (36,821,009) - (36,821,009)
73 Debt issuance costs and fees (2,704,362) - (2,704,362)
81 Facilities planning (3,002,397) - (3,002,397
95 Payments to Juvenile Justice Alternative - - -
Education Programs (65,274) - (65,274)
99 Intergovernmental charges (2,106,007) - (2,106,007)
TG Total Governmental Activities (569,999,459) - (569,999,459)
Business-Type Activities:
01 Natatorium 51,370 51,370
TB Total Business-Type Activities - 51,370 51,370
TP Total Primary Government (569,999,459) 51,370 (569,948,089)
General Revenues
Taxes:
MT Property taxes, levied for general purposes 351,841,337 - 351,841,337
DT Property taxes, levied for debt service 100,157,196 - 100,157,196
SF State-aid formula grants not restricted 168,770,767 - 168,770,767
IE Investment earnings 1,576,143 - 1,576,143
mi Miscellaneous 1,114,419 - 1,114,419
TR Total General Revenues 623,459,862 - 623,459,862
E1l Extraordinary item - Winter storm insurance
proceeds 2,443,884 - 2,443,884
CN Change in net position 55,904,287 51,370 55,955,657
NB Net Position - Beginning 103,576,146 130,565 103,706,711
NE Net Position - Ending S 159,480,433 §$ 181,935 S 159,662,368

See notes to the financial statements.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2022

Data Control

Codes
Assets
1110 Cash and cash equivalents
1120 Investments
Receivables:
1210 Property taxes receivable - current
1220 Property taxes receivable - delinquent
1230 Allowance for uncollectible taxes ( credit)
1240 Receivables from other governments
1250 Accrued interest
1260 Due from other funds
1290 Other receivables
1310 Inventories
1410 Prepaid items
1490 Other current assets
1910 Long-term investments
1000 Total Assets
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
2110 Accounts payable
2150 Payroll deduction and withholdings
2160 Accrued wages payable
2170 Due to other funds
2180 Payable to other governments
2190 Due to student groups
2200 Accrued expenditures
2300 Unearned revenue
2000 Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - property taxes
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund Balances:
Non-Spendable:
3410 Inventories
3430 Prepaid items
Restricted:
3450 Federal/ State grant funds
3470 Capital acquisitions and contractual oblig.
3480 Debt service
Committed:
3545 Other
Assigned:
3590 Other
3600 Unassigned
3000 Total Fund Balances
4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and

Fund Balances

See notes to the financial statements.
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Debt Service

Exhibit C-1

Page 1 of 2

Capital Projects

General Fund Fund Fund
S 312,202,238 $ 50,941,052 $ 305,914,230
- - 178,227,975
4,510,488 1,279,411 -
11,370,315 3,249,864 -
(7,939,088) (2,195,116) -
47,609,566 - -
- - 161,326
7,838,412 1,549,057 8,621,093
4,903,691 - -
2,177,266 - -
628,937 - -
55,868 - -
- - 24,713,281
S 383,357,693 S 54,824,268 S 517,637,905
S 2,518,830 S - S 16,453,164
9,566,678 - -
47,879,814 - -
6,297,156 - 2,888,633
9,259,875 38,499 -
2,126,711 - -
2,710,725 - -
195,157 - -
80,554,946 38,499 19,341,797
6,170,455 1,898,501 -
6,170,455 1,898,501 -
2,177,266 - -
628,937 - -
- - 494,495,988
- 52,887,268 -
11,006,281 - -
118,265,050 - 3,800,120
164,554,758 - -
296,632,292 52,887,268 498,296,108
S 383,357,693 S 54,824,268 $ 517,637,905
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit C-1

BALANCE SHEET — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Page 2 of 2
June 30, 2022
480
Natural Gas Nonmajor Total
Special Governmental Governmental
Revenue Fund Funds Fund
S 14,556,945 S 5,687,172 § 689,301,637
- - 178,227,975
- - 5,789,899
- - 14,620,179
- - (10,134,204)
- 29,865,401 77,474,967
- - 161,326
105,480 12,154,555 30,268,597
53,800 71,757 5,029,248
- 2,465,856 4,643,122
- - 628,937
- - 55,868
- - 24,713,281

$ 14,716,225 $ 50,244,741 $ 1,020,780,832

$ 1,203 ¢ 1,143,889 S 20,117,086
- - 9,566,678

- 12,527,889 60,407,703

- 21,578,347 30,764,136

N 45,245 9,343,619

- 2,167 2,128,878

- - 2,710,725

- 560,762 755,919

1,203 35,858,299 135,794,744

- 8,068,956

- - 8,068,956

- - 2,177,266

- - 628,937

- 12,273,539 12,273,539

- - 494,495,988

- - 52,887,268
14,715,022 2,112,903 27,834,206
- - 122,065,170

- - 164,554,758
14,715,022 14,386,442 876,917,132

S 14,716,225 $ 50,244,741 $ 1,020,780,832

See notes to the financial statements. 25 Arlington ISD 2022 ACFR
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STA
June 30, 2022

Data
Control
Codes

TEMENT OF NET POSITION

Total fund balance, governmental funds ( from C-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
( A-1) are different because:

1
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds. Capital assets at
historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation are reported in the
governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

2 Property taxes receivable have been levied and are due this year, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, these
property taxes ( net of allowance for uncollectible accounts) are deferred in
the fund financial statements.

3 Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension and OPEB
liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore are not
reported as liabilities in the funds.

4 Deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflow of resources related to
pension and OPEB.

5 Addition of Internal Service Fund net position.

19 Total Net Position - Governmental Activities (See B-1)

See notes to the financial statements. 27
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876,917,129

1,086,117,577

8,068,956

(1,651,372,689)

(162,120,883)

1,870,343

$

159,480,433
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Data
Control
Codes
Revenues
5700 Local and intermediate sources
5800 State program revenues
5900 Federal program revenues
5020 Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
0011 Instruction
0012 Instruction resources and media services
0013 Curriculum and staff development
0021 Instructional leadership
0023 School leadership
0031 Guidance, counseling and evaluation services
0032 Social work services
0033 Health services
0034 Student transportation
0035 Food services
0036 Extracurricular activities
0041 General administration
0051 Facilities maintenance and operations
0052 Security and monitoring services
0053 Data processing services
0061 Community services
Debt service:
0071 Principal on long-term debt
0072 Interest on long-term debt
0073 Bond issuance costs and fees
Capital outlay:
0081 Facilities acquistion and construction
Intergovernmental:
0095 Payments to juvenile justice alt. ed. prgm.
0099 Other intergovernmental charges
6030 Total Expenditures
1100 Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other Financing Sources ( Uses)
7911 Issuance of debt
7912 Sale of real or personal property
7916 Premium or discount on issuance of bonds
8949 Payment to Bond Refunding Escrow Agent
7080 Total Other Financing Sources ( Uses)
Special Item
7919 Extraordinary items ( resource)
Total Special Item
1200 Net change in fund balances
1000 Fund Balance - July 1 ( Beginning)
3000 Fund Balance - June 30 ( Ending)

See notes to the financial statements.

Debt Service

Exhibit C-3
Page 1 of 2

Capital Projects

General Fund Fund Fund
$ 358,481,352 S 100,344,099 $ 810,468
199,348,517 975,327 -
50,675,491 329,949 -
608,505,360 101,649,375 810,468
332,741,360 - 14,061,928
7,136,277 - -
6,579,753 - -
13,326,301 - -
32,724,375 - -
30,222,617 - -
2,948,993 - -
7,243,060 - -
18,422,686 - 1,343,644
271,065 - -
11,979,120 - -
13,866,173 - -
56,963,443 - 3,113,613
9,439,320 - -
11,509,861 - 7,546,832
474,631 - -
662,656 63,820,000 -
47,516 44,034,954 -
- 113,026 1,295,668
82,512 - 82,340,773
65,274 - -
2,106,007 - -
558,813,000 107,967,980 109,702,458
49,692,360 (6,318,605) (108,891,990)
- 9,650,000 166,720,000
- - 75,004
- 2,111,335 31,518,796
- (11,684,693) -
- 76,642 198,313,800
2,443,884 - -
2,443,384 - -
52,136,244 (6,241,963) 89,421,810
244,496,048 59,129,231 408,874,295
$ 296,632,292 S 52,887,268 S 498,296,105
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit C-3

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES Page 2 of 2
IN FUND BALANCE — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

480
Natural Gas Nonmajor Total
Special Governmental  Governmental
Revenue Fund Funds Funds

$ 1,374,104 $ 5,170,222 $ 466,180,245
- 2,626,178 202,950,022

- 109,175,102 160,180,542

1,374,104 116,971,502 829,310,809

- 46,960,036 393,763,324

- 564,870 7,701,147
- 13,769,429 20,349,182

- 5,113,445 18,439,746

- 1,590,340 34,314,715

- 4,154,157 34,376,774

- 952,990 3,901,983

- 48,645 7,291,705

- 45,872 19,812,202

- 30,071,349 30,342,414

- 3,961,711 15,940,831

16,205 382,776 14,265,154

- 118,224 60,195,280

- 451,989 9,891,309

- 148,769 19,205,462

- 2,340,069 2,814,700

- - 64,482,656

- - 44,082,470

- - 1,408,694

- - 82,423,285

- - 65,274

- - 2,106,007

16,205 110,674,671 887,174,314
1,357,899 6,296,831 (57,863,505)
- - 176,370,000

- - 75,004

- - 33,630,131
- - (11,684,693)

- - 198,390,442

- - 2,443,884

- - 2,443,884
1,357,899 6,296,831 142,970,821
13,357,123 8,089,611 733,946,308

$ 14,715,022 $ 14,386,442 $ 876,917,129

See notes to the financial statements. 29 Arlington ISD 2022 ACFR



ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit C-4
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Data
Control
Codes
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds ( from C-3) S 142,970,821
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities ( B-1) are different
because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense.
1 Governmental funds capital outlays S 85,410,991
2 Governmental activities depreciation expense (65,384,402)
3 Disposal of asset (110,231)
4 Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (1,011,492)
5 The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related
items.
(133,832,782)
6 Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and these are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 4,546,478
7 Changes in net pension and net OPEB liabilities and related deferred outflows and inflows
23,282,470
8 Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of printing and risk
management, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is
reported as governmental activities. ( See D-2) 32,434
Change in net position of governmental activities ( see B-1) S 55,904,287

See notes to the financial statements. 30 Arlington ISD 2022 ACFR



ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES — ORIGINAL BUDGET, AMENDED FINAL (GAAP BASIS)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Local revenues
State program revenues
Federal program revenues
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Instruction

Instructional resources and media services

Curriculum and staff development
Instructional leadership
School leadership

Guidance, counseling and evaluation services

Social work services
Health services
Student transportation
Food services
Extracurricular activities
General administration
Facilities maintenance and operations
Security and monitoring services
Data processing services
Community services
Debt Service:
Principal on long-term debt
Interest on long-term debt
Capital outlay:
Facilities acquistion and construction
Intergovernmental:

Payments to Juvenile Justice Alt. Ed. Prgm.

Other governmental charges
Total Expenditures
Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

Special Item
Extraordinary items (Uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

See notes to the financial statements.

Exhibit C-5

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Amounts, Variance with

Original Final Budgetary Basis Final Budget
S 353,888,434 $ 355,095,540 S 358,481,352 S 3,385,812
204,823,462 188,985,264 199,348,517 10,363,253
12,482,985 42,746,665 50,675,491 7,928,826
571,194,881 586,827,469 608,505,360 21,677,891
351,843,518 341,019,096 332,741,360 8,277,736
6,963,206 7,524,478 7,136,277 388,201
7,542,644 7,866,893 6,579,753 1,287,140
12,411,211 13,802,165 13,326,301 475,864
34,041,805 33,238,263 32,724,375 513,888
32,358,201 31,007,083 30,222,617 784,466
2,284,378 3,088,104 2,948,993 139,111
7,854,573 7,730,543 7,243,060 487,483
17,825,195 18,690,095 18,422,686 267,409
- 421,065 271,065 150,000
12,800,799 12,956,836 11,979,120 977,716
13,837,073 14,176,724 13,866,173 310,551
56,627,083 61,568,009 56,963,443 4,604,566
10,398,307 10,435,320 9,439,320 996,000
13,680,484 12,190,652 11,509,861 680,791
519,079 640,045 474,631 165,414
589,164 764,164 662,656 101,508
- 280,000 47,516 232,484
- 277,785 82,512 195,273
30,000 225,000 65,274 159,726
2,458,600 2,608,600 2,106,007 502,593
584,065,320 580,510,920 558,813,000 21,697,920
(12,870,439) 6,316,549 49,692,360 43,375,811
- - 2,443,884 2,443,884
(12,870,439) 6,316,549 52,136,244 45,819,695
244,496,048 244,496,048 244,496,048 -

S 231,625,609

$ 250,812,597

S 296,632,292 S 45,819,695
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2022

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Due from other funds
Other receivables
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued wages payable
Accrued expenses
Total Liabilities

Net Position

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

See notes to the financial statements.

Enterprise Funds

Internal Service

Natatorium Funds
S 189,970 5,753,315
- 495,819
189,970 6,249,134
6 171,676

280

7,748 -
- 4,207,115
8,034 4,378,791
181,936 1,870,343
S 181,936 1,870,343

32
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Payroll costs

Purchased and contracted services

Supplies and materials

Claims expense and other operating expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income ( Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues ( Expenses)
Investment earnings

Total Nonoperating Revenues ( Expenses)

Change in Net Position

Net Position - July 1 ( Beginning)
Net Position - June 30 ( Ending)

See notes to the financial statements.

Enterprise Funds

Internal Service

Exhibit D-2

Natatorium Funds

S 161,508 S 2,101,989

161,508 2,101,989

82,647 -

721 165,260

5,549 138,110

21,222 1,766,184

110,139 2,069,554

51,369 32,435

- 12,922

- 12,922

51,369 45,357

130,567 1,824,986

S 181,936 S 1,870,343
33
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments for insurance claims
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for other operating expenses
Net Cash Provided by ( Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on investments
Net Cash Provided by ( Used for) Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income ( Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income ( Loss)

Change in Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Outflows:

( Increase) decrease in Receivables

( Increase) decrease in Interfund Receivables
Increase ( decrease) in accrued wages
Increase ( decrease) in Accounts payable
Increase ( decrease) in Interfund payables
Increase ( decrease) in Interfund Payables

Net Cash Provided by ( Used for) Operating Activities

See notes to the financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities -
Enterprise Fund Internal Service
- Natatorium Funds
S 261,508 S 1,997,932
- (1,437,387)
(87,527) (147,470)
(16,004) (165,260)
157,977 247,815
- 12,922
- 12,922
157,977 260,737
31,993 5,492,578
S 189,970 $§ 5,753,315
S 51,369 S 32,435
100,000 -
4,938 (104,057)
1,384 -
6 70,507
280 248,930
S 157,977 S 247,815

Exhibit D-3
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND

June 30, 2022

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to Others

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Restricted for Student Activities

See notes to the financial statements.
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Custodial Fund

S 5,317,090

5,317,090

53,834
2,248,658

2,302,492

S 3,014,598

Exhibit E-1
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND

June 30, 2022

Contributions

Revenues from student activities
Total Contributions
Total Additions
Deductions

Payments for student activities
Total Deductions

Change in net position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

See notes to the financial statements.
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Custodial Fund

S 1,858,838
1,858,838

1,858,838

1,786,882

1,786,882

71,956

2,942,642

$ 3,014,598

Exhibit E-2
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit F-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Arlington Independent School District (“District”) is an independent public educational agency operating under applicable
laws and regulations of the State of Texas. The District is autonomously governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees
elected by the District's residents. The District prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
authoritative sources identified in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 69, as amended by Statement on Auditing Standards
No.’s 91 and 93 of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and it complies with the most recent requirements
of the Texas Education Agency's Financial Accountability System Resource Guide (the "Resource Guide" or FASRG) and the
requirements of contracts and grants of agencies from which it receives funds.

A. Reporting Entity

The Board of Trustees (“Board”), a seven-member group, has governance responsibilities over all activities related to public
elementary and secondary education in the City of Arlington and portions of the Cities of Grand Prairie and Dalworthington
Gardens, and the Town of Pantego. Because members of the Board are elected by the public, they have the authority to
make decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and significantly influence operations; and they have primary
accountability for fiscal matters. The District is not included in any other governmental “reporting entity” as defined by GASB
Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus; an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. The
District is not financially accountable for any other organizations; therefore, no component units are included within the
reporting entity. The District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and must comply with the
requirements of these funding entities.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by taxes, charges to school
districts for services, state funds, grants and other intergovernmental revenues.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or given segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Interfund activities between governmental funds, and between governmental funds and proprietary funds, appear in the
governmental and proprietary fund financial statements. However, all interfund transactions between governmental funds
have been eliminated on the government-wide statements. Interfund transactions between governmental funds and internal
service funds have not been eliminated to the extent that services have been provided and used. Interfund transactions
remain in the government-wide statements for activities between governmental funds and proprietary funds. Separate
financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit F-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)
Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the District’s general operating fund. It is used to account for all financial transactions
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Major revenue sources include local property taxes and state
funding under the Foundation School Program. Expenditures include all costs associated with the daily operations of the
schools except for costs incurred by programs accounted for in the Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Fund, Debt Service
Fund, and Proprietary Funds. The General Fund is a budgeted fund, and any fund balances are considered resources available
for current operations.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund, which is a budgeted fund, accounts for the resources accumulated and payments
made on long-term general obligation debt of government funds. Revenues include collections on general property taxes,
state funding under the Instructional Facilities and Existing Debt Allotments, and earnings on investments of the fund.
Expenditures of the fund are for retirement of bond principal and payment of interest on bonded debt. The fund balance
represents amounts that will be used for retirement of bonds and payment of interest in the future.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund accounts for all proceeds of bond issues and earnings on investments of the
fund. Revenue from the sale of bonds is used for acquiring school sites, constructing and equipping new school facilities,
renovating existing facilities, and replacing transportation, technology, and various other equipment. This is a budgeted fund.

Natural Gas Special Revenue Fund - During recent years, the District has engaged in leasing the mineral rights to its various
properties for the extraction of natural gas. This activity has resulted in a significant inflow of contract signing bonuses and
royalty payments for the District. During the year ended August 31, 2011, the Board of Trustees committed these inflows for
future special projects.

Proprietary Funds

Business-type Fund — The District only has one business-type activity which accounts for the activity the District’s Natatorium.
The revenues are derived from external user charges.

Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund accounts for the management of the District’s Print Shop and worker’s
compensation insurance. The cost of these activities is allocated to the other funds of the District on a cost reimbursement
basis. These are not budgeted funds.

Fiduciary Fund

Custodial Fund - The District accounts for resources held for others in a custodial capacity in custodial funds. The fund is
used to account for assets held by the District as an agent for student and other organizations. These funds were previously
reported in an agency fund. Upon implementation of GASB 84, these funds reported detail of additions to and deductions
from custodial funds in the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues susceptible to accrual are principally certain inter-governmental
revenues, property taxes and investment income. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Funds received from federal, state and other grants designated for payment of specific District expenditures are considered
to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant. Accordingly, when such funds are
received, they are recorded as unearned revenues until related and authorized expenditures have been made. If balances
have not been expended by the end of the project period, grantors sometimes require the District to refund all or part of the
unused amount.

The proprietary fund types are accounted for on an economic resources measurement focus. Operating revenues and
expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. The
custodial fund uses the economic resources measurement focus and utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for reporting its
assets and liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimations and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Implementation of New Standards

GASB Statement No. 87 Leases was issued in June 2017 and was effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021. This
Statement established a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of
the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The
District has evaluated the effects of this Statement and has determined that it does impact to the financial statements. The
District has incorporated such leases into its capital assets and long-term liabilities on both the face of the financial
statements and the note disclosures.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D. Implementation of New Standards (continued)

GASB Statement No. 89 Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the end of a Construction Period, was issued in June
2018 and was effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2020.This Statement requires that interest costs incurred
before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost was incurred for
financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before
the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type
activity or enterprise fund. The requirements of this Statement should be handled prospectively. The District has
determined that it does not impact its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 93 Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates was issued in June 2020 and had various effective dates.
The Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to the replacement of the interbank
offered rates (IBORs) in hedging derivative instruments and leases. It also identifies appropriate benchmark interest rates
for hedging derivative instruments. During the current fiscal year paragraphs 13 and 14 were effective and pertained to
lease modifications. The District has determined that it does not impact its financial statements.

No. 97 Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457
Deferred Compensation Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB
Statement No. 32 was issued in June 2020. This Statement provides guidance regarding the financial reporting of defined
contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans. The Statement will also
enhance (1) information related to Section 457 plans that meet the definition of a pension plan and the benefits provided
through those plans and (2) investment information for all Section 457 plans. Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Statement were
effective immediately whereas the remaining requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June
15, 2021. The District has determined that this Statement does not impact the financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 98 The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report in October 2021. This Statement establishes
the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. The requirements of the Statement are effective for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2021. The District implemented this pronouncement in the prior year.

E. Deposits and Investments
1. Cash and cash equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from date of acquisition. Investments for the District are reported at fair
value.

2. Investments

Investments consist largely of money market funds and government investment pools. The District’s investments are carried
at fair value based on quoted market prices at year-end, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Investments having a maturity of three months or less are reported as cash and cash equivalents.

The District categorizes fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an
asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The District’s local government investment pools are
recorded at amortized costs as permitted by GASB Statement No. 79 Certain Investment Pools and Pool Participants.

40 Arlington ISD 2022 ACFR



ARLINGTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit F-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
F. Receivables and payables

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are reported as
interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided,
deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers in and transfers out are netted and presented as a single
“transfers” line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and
presented as a single “internal balances” line of the government-wide statement of net position.

Property taxes are levied each year by October 1 based upon property valuations as of January 1. Taxes are due on receipt
of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which imposed. On January
1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest ultimately imposed.

Tax collections are prorated between the General Fund and Debt Service Fund based on the tax rate adopted by the Board.
The District is permitted under the Texas Education Code to levy taxes up to $1.0864 per $100 of assessed valuation for
general governmental services other than debt service on general obligation bonds. The tax rate which may be levied to
service general obligation bonds is not limited. For the current fiscal year, the Board of Trustees set tax rates applicable to
general governmental services and to debt service of $1.060100 per $100 valuation and $0.30070 per $100 valuation,
respectively, based on a net assessed valuation of $33,355,504,880.

Delinquent property tax receivables are prorated between the General Fund and Debt Service Fund based on rates adopted
for the year of the levy. Allowance for uncollectible tax receivables is based on historical experience in collecting property
taxes. Management periodically reviews outstanding property taxes and establishes an allowance adequate to reflect the
anticipated net collectible balance. The District is prohibited from writing off property taxes without specific statutory
authority from the Texas Legislature. The property tax receivable allowance is equal to 69.0% of total outstanding property
taxes at June 30, 2022.

G. Inventories and prepaid items

In the General Fund, inventory is valued at cost, using the weighted-average method. A computerized inventory system
automatically updates inventory values. This valuation is not materially different from the first-in, first-out valuation method.
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual
inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.

In the General Fund, certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid expenses in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as
expenditures/ expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

In the nonmajor special revenue fund, inventory is valued at cost, using the weighted-average method, except for food
commodities, which are recorded at market values supplied by the Texas Department of Human Services. Commodities are
received at no cost to the District; however, their fair market value is recorded as inventory and revenue when received. As
the commodities are consumed, inventory is relieved, and expenditures are charged.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

H. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The District does not have any public domain
(“infrastructure”) capital assets. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more

than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of two years or more.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives, as well
as the cost of land, are not depreciated.

Capital assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 20-40 years
Furniture and equipment 5-12 years
Right-to-use assets 2-5 years

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated
capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date donated.

I. Compensated absences

All administrative and full-time hourly employees of the District receive up to three weeks of vacation each calendar year. If
the employee does not use the vacation time by December 31 of the following year, it is lost and may not be carried forward.
Employees may accumulate as many as fifty days of local personal leave, which can be carried forward from year to year. The
time is forfeited if not used before the employee leaves the District. Therefore, no accrual for compensated absences is
included in the accompanying financial statements.

J. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and
other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
appropriate effective interest and straight-line methods.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

K. Accrued service benefits
Accrued service benefits are accrued as a liability in the government-wide financial statements. Eligibility for accrued service
benefits for the employees of the Arlington Independent School District is determined by length of continuous service with

the District and approval for retirement benefits under provisions of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas.

Benefits are available to employees hired before January 1, 1985 and are based on years of experience with the District,
accumulated eligible local sick leave days and accumulated ineligible local sick leave days.
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L. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are reported in the statement of financial position as described below:

A deferred outflow of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to future periods (a decrease in assets in
excess of any related decrease in liabilities or an increase in liabilities in excess of any related increase in assets) by the
government. The District has three items that qualify for reporting in this category:

e Deferred outflows of resources for refunding — Reported in the government-wide financial statement of net position,
this deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt.

e Deferred outflows of resources for pension — Reported in the government-wide financial statement of net position,
this deferred outflow results from pension plan contributions made after the measurement date of the net pension
liability and the results 1) changes in actuarial assumptions; 2) differences between expected and actual actuarial
experiences and 3) changes in the District’s proportional share of pension liabilities. The deferred outflows of
resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the next fiscal year. The remaining pension related deferred
outflows will be amortized over the expected remaining service lives of all employees (active and inactive employees)
that are provided with pensions through the pension plan.

e Deferred outflows of resources for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) — Reported in the government wide
financial statement of net position, this deferred outflow results from OPEB plan contributions made after the
measurement date of the net OPEB liability and the results of 1) differences between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments and 2) changes in the District’s proportional share of OPEB liabilities. The deferred outflows
of resources related to other post-employment benefits resulting from District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the next fiscal year. The deferred
outflows resulting from differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments will be
amortized over a closed five-year period. The remaining deferred outflows will be amortized over the expected
remaining service lives of all employees (active and inactive employees) that are provided with post-employment
benefits through the OPEB plan.

A deferred inflow of resources is an represents an acquisition of net assets to future periods (an increase in assets in excess
of any related increase in liabilities or a decrease in liabilities in excess of any related decrease in assets) by the government.
The District has three items that qualify for reporting in this category:

e Deferred inflows of resources for unavailable revenues — Reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet,
unavailable revenues from property taxes arise under the modified accrual basis of accounting. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow or resources in the period that the amounts become available.

e Deferred inflows of resources for pension — reported in the government-wide financial statement of net position, these
deferred inflows result primarily from 1) differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments; 2) changes in actuarial assumptions; 3) differences between expected and actual actuarial experiences
and 4) changes in the District’s proportional share of pension liabilities. The deferred inflows resulting from differences
between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments will be amortized over a closed five-year
period. The remaining pension related deferred inflows will be amortized over the expected remaining service lives of
all employees (active and inactive employees) that are provided with pensions through the pension plan.

e Deferred inflows of resources for OPEB — Reported in the government wide financial statement of net position, these
deferred inflows result primarily from 1) changes in actuarial assumptions and 2) differences between expected and
actual actuarial experiences. These OPEB related deferred inflows will be amortized over the expected remaining
service lives of all employees (active and inactive employees) that are provided with OPEB through the OPEB plan.
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M. Pensions

The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) has been determined using the flow of economic
resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and
information about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS’s fiduciary net position. Benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

The District will continue to make the required pension contributions based on the statutorily determined rates established
by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS). TRS will apply the District’s contributions to the net pension liability on an
annual basis. The contributions are paid by the funds that pay the employees’ salaries. These funding sources include the
General Fund and the Special Revenue funds.

N. Other Post-Employment Benefits.

The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) TRS Care Plan has been determined using the flow
of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the
net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to other post-employment
benefits, OPEB expense, and information about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS Care’s fiduciary net
position. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. There are no
investments as this is a pay-as you-go plan and all cash is held in a cash account.

The District will continue to make the required OPEB contributions based on the statutorily determined rates established by
the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS). TRS will apply the District’s contributions to the net OPEB liability on an annual
basis. The contributions are paid by the funds that pay the employees’ salaries. These funding sources include the General
Fund and the Special Revenue funds.

O. Net position and fund balances

Net position on the Statement of Net Position include the following:

Net investment in capital assets — the component of net position that reports capital assets less both the accumulated
depreciation and the outstanding balance of debt and is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of these capital assets.

Restricted for federal and state programs — the component of net position that reports the difference between assets and
liabilities related to federal and state programs that consist of assets with constraints placed on their use by granting
agencies.

Restricted for debt service — the component of net position that reports the difference between assets, deferred inflows of
resources and liabilities adjusted on a government-wide basis that consists of assets with constraints placed on their use by

the bond covenants.

Unrestricted net position — the difference between the assets, deferred inflows of resources and liabilities that are not
reported in net position net investment in capital assets, or restricted net position.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
O. Net position and fund balances (continu